
MINUTES 

MONTANA SENATE 
51st LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION 

COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 

Call to Order: By Chairman William E. Farrell, on February 
15, 1989, at Room 331, Capitol. 

Members Present: 

Members Excused: 

Members Absent: 

Staff Present: 

ROLL CALL 

Senator John Anderson, Jr., Senator Esther 
Bengtson, Senator William E. Farrell, 
Senator Ethel Harding, Senator Sam Hofman, 
Senator Paul Rapp-Svrcek, Senator Tom 
Rasmussen, Senator Eleanor Vaughn 

Senator Hubert Abrams 

None 

Eddye McClure 

HEARING ON SB 397 

Presentation and Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

Senator Darryl Meyer testified that SB397 will require that 
new rules, proposed by the departments, be reviewed by the 
Governor, first. He noted the Governor may approve them, or 
may suggest some changes, and that this would give the 
Governor a chance to find out what his department heads are 
doing. 

List of Testifying Proponents and What Group they Represent: 

Jim Mockler, Executive Director, Montana Coal Council 
Robert A. Ellerd, Governor's Office 
John Lahr, Montana Power Company 
Rose Hughes, Montana Health Care Association 
Carol Mosher, Montana Grange, Farmers Union, Women Involved 

with Farm Economics, Montana Cattle Men's Association, 
Montana Stockgrowers Association, Montana Cattle Feeders, 
Montana Cattle Women, Montana Dairymen's Association, 
Montana Graingrowers, Montana Association of State 
Grazing Districts 

Gary Langley, Executive Director, Montana Mining Association 
Jim Tutwiler, Montana Chamber of Commerce 
Don Allen, Executive Director, Montana Wood Products Associa­
tion 



Testimony: 

SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 2 of 24 

Mr. Mockler stated that, speaking on behalf of one of the most 
highly regulated industries in Montana, it can be extremely 
exasperating when state agencies come out with proposed rules. 
He indicated that, when they go through the hearing process, 
often times those rules are overruled or, through the process, 
the Governor does get into it. Mr. Mockler stated he thinks 
that the Governor, as chief executive officer of the state, 
not only has the right, but should have the responsibility of 
reviewing the rules that are proposed by his departments, 
before they become published and go into the hearing process. 
He indicated he thinks it is part of the executive branch, and 
should have been practice. Mr. Mockler noted he is not sure 
it requires a statute but, since the Governor has asked that 
it be statutory, he thinks it is fair, and that it is what he 
should do, since it is his agencies, and his directive. Mr. 
Mockler indicated he hopes the committee will support the 
bill. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Ellerd testified there is an amendment to this bill, which 
will be presented to the commi t tee in a few minutes, and 
indicated the amendment will read the same as the amendment 
already supplied to the committee on SB396, a copy of which 
is attached as Exhibit 3. He indicated the amendment is to 
page 2, line 1, and reads as follows: Insert "As promulgated 
by agencies in the Executive Branch as defined in 2-15-102(2), 
MeA". Mr. Ellerd indicated that reads that an agency means 
an office, commission, committee, or department council, 
division, bureau, section, or any other entity, or implemented 
in the executive branch of state government. He noted that 
will be the amendment to this bill. Mr. Ellerd added the 
Governor strongly supports this bill. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Lahr testified he supports both SB397 and SB396, and 
indicated he will make one presentation. He noted he is also 
authorized to speak for Gene Phillips, an attorney represent­
ing Civic Power and Light, who asked him to pass along his 
support on these two bills. 

Mr. Lahr stated Montana I s rule-making procedure was instituted 
to bring order out of chaos, to define procedures, and provide 
notification to the public of what rules state government is 
instituting to control the lives of the citizens and their 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 3 of 24 

businesses. He noted that, unfortunately, no formal procedure 
was set in place to review, from time to time, what rules are 
in place, whether they are still needed, and to allow later 
administrations to cull out those considered outdated, unfair, 
or contrary to public policy. Mr. Lahr stated he believes the 
present rule-making process began about 1973, and asked the 
commi t tee to think back to what they were doing in 1973, 
indicating it seems like a long time ago. He noted that, 
possibly, none of us in this room were here, at that time, in 
the legislative area. Mr. Lahr stated Governor Torn Judge held 
office at that time, that 7 Senators and 7 House members 
served at the time the rule-making procedures were instituted, 
and that this is the 10th legislative session since the rules 
procedure was begun. He indicated that, in Montana, Governors 
change, legislators change, laws change, and even the con­
stitution has changed, but that rules go on forever. Mr. Lahr 
asked the committee to please allow a review of the rules, and 
pass SB396 and SB397. 

Testimony: 

Ms. Hughes indicated she would vie with Mr. Mockler as 
representing one of the most highly regulated industries in 
this state, basically the nursing homes. She stated they deal 
with the executive branch agencies all the time, particularly 
Health, Family Services and SRS, and those agencies have a lot 
of rules, and a lot of rule making authority. She indicated 
they find, sometimes, the process used in the development and 
adoption of rules is not always everything that it should be, 
noting that, sometimes, people wi thin the agencies have a 
vested interest in the rules, as well as pride of authorship. 
She stated a hearing is held, people testify about the rules, 
and what the effect will be on the operation of their facili­
ties, and yet no changes are made by the agency, noting that 
it seems, in some instances, to be a foregone conclusion that 
whatever has been written is ultimately going to be on the 
books. Ms. Hughes stated this bill puts into law, and opens 
up for public scrutiny, a practice that is already in place. 
She noted she, on many occasions, visited former Governor 
Schwinden's office about things his agencies were proposing 
to do, adding that she would do that with any Governor in 
office because she thinks that is where the buck stops, and 
that you do sometimes have to go there to let the chief 
executive know what is going on in the agencies. Ms. Hughes 
stated this bill opens up the process, because the people 
using that procedure are those who are most knowledgeable 
about the political system, and are willing to talk to the 
Governor, and indicated she thinks that, if you establish on 
the books that this is a proper thing to do, that it is appro-



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 4 of 24 

priate, and that the Governor does have authority to make some 
of these decisions, it will actually open up that process and 
that more citizens, and more people who are affected by the 
rules, will go to the chief executive with their concerns. 
Ms. Hughes indicated she thinks that is good for the state, 
and urged the committee to support the bill. 

Testimony: 

Ms. Mosher testified they support the previous testimony, and 
are very much in support of SB396 and SB397. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Langley indicated the mlnlng industry is very heavily 
regulated in Montana, and stated the problems they have, as 
an industry, particularly in the areas of state environmental 
and tax policy, is not necessarily statutes, but the rules and 
regulations that have been promulgated to implement those 
statutes. He noted they have requested a couple of bills, in 
this session of the Legislature, to clarify the statutes, 
because they feel that, in several areas, particularly in the 
area of taxation, the administrators who have wri tten the 
rules have gone far beyond the intent of the legislation 
passed by elected legislators. 

Mr. Langley indicated they feel that a Commission, such as 
the one being proposed by Governor Stephens, would allay this 
problem to a certain extent. He stated that some rules not 
only go beyond the intent of the legislation but, in some 
cases, are contrary to the statutes. He reported that the 
Hard Rock Mining Impact Act, which was passed in 1981, 
requires large-scale mineral developers, who hire 75 or more 
people, to file extensive impact statements on the socio­
economic impact they may have on a community, and requires 
they take measures to mitigate those impacts. He noted the 
statute, as it was passed in 1981, was 11 or 12 pages long. 
Mr. Langley indicated the outgrowth of that statute is a thick 
loose-leaf folder of rules and regulations, policies and 
guidelines. He stated that, in many cases, not only do these 
rules, regulations, policies, and guidelines implemented by 
the administrative branch go beyond the intent of the law, 
and are contrary, but they are also intimidating, particularly 
for new companies coming in to Montana. He stated they feel 
this is a step in the right direction, and is the kind of 
program they have advocated for a long time. Mr. Langley 
stated that, whether you are Republican or Democrat, whether 
you agree with Governor Stephens, or not, this legislation 
will allow the Governor to keep the campaign promises he made 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 5 of 24 

during the election. H~ added that he thinks the Governor 
should be given that leeway, that he should not be hamstrung, 
and should be allowed to keep his campaign promises by passing 
this legislation. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Tutwiler stated that the Montana Chamber supports SB397, 
and they are in general accord wi th the testimony already 
presented to the commi t tee. He added that, as a state 
chamber, they represent the interests of businesses around 
Montana, and spend a considerable amount of time each month 
reviewing the proposed r~le changes, noting they frequently 
find it necessary to engage the services of an attorney to 
work out problems that arise with various rule publications, 
even to understanding these rules. Mr. Tutwiler indicated 
they feel that SB397 would be a step in the right direction, 
and would provide help to the business community throughout 
the state. He reiterated that they support the bill, and 
urged the committee to a1so support SB397. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Allen stated he is appear ing to support both bills, 
particularly SB397. He indicated that, having covered the 
legislative process in tne state for the last 14 years, and 
having represented 2 of the major resource industries, it is 
very frustrating, at times, trying to figure out what is 
happening with the implementation and adoption of rules to 
implement a law passed '~he previous session. He stated he 
believes in trying to work with the agencies, and has tried 
to through the years, noting he thinks he has been successful 
in many cases. He indicated there have been times when people 
who do not have to run for election, and there is no accoun­
tability, have, in their own minds, a set of criteria that 
people should abide by in order to operate in the state, 
whether it has been agreed to by the elected officials, or 
not, and this presents a lot of difficulty. Mr. Allen 
indicated the Administrative Code Committee has been the only 
avenue in trying to make sure that agencies live up to the 
intent of the law in adopting rules. He stated he has 
appeared before the cOmIT.ittee, on many occasions, trying to 
clarify that situation. He indicated that, years ago, a 
survey was conducted in several states, noting that Wyoming 
was the only one in this area that was surveyed, and stated 
that, even in Wyoming, is considered a pro-business state, 
more so than the image of Montana, they found that 55% of the 
rules which had been adopted strayed from the intent of the 
statutes. Mr. Allen stated he thinks this bill is good, that 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 6 of 24 

there has been a lot of talk about checks and balances, and 
accountability, and he believes this will give that oppor­
tunity to a very important part of state government. 

List of Testifying Opponents and What Group They Represent: 

Kathy Irigon, State Auditor's Office 
Eric Feaver, Montana Education Association 
Eugene Fenderson, Montana Building and Construction Trades 

Union 
Jim Jensen, Montana Environmental Information Center 
Tim Baker, attorney, Montana Department of Public Service 

Regulation 

Testimony: 

Ms. Irigon testified that the State Auditor's office under­
stands the requirements of SB397 were not intended to apply 
to other executive branch elected officials, or their depart­
ment. She stated they have discussed the bill with the 
Governor's office, and have come up with some amendments that 
would make the bill do what the Governor's office had intended 
it to do. Ms. Irigon distributed copies of the amendment, a 
copy of which is attached as Exhibit 9, and explained the 
proposed amendment would exclude from application of the bill 
the offices of the attorney general, state auditor, secretary 
of state, and the superintendent of public instruction. Ms. 
Irigon stated they believe the amendments which have been 
proposed, so far, would not take those offices out of the 
application of the bill. She indicated the technical amend­
ment is necessary to Section 2 of the bill to clarify the 
intent of the Governor's office, and would merely consist of 
adding the language, proposed in the amendment, to the middle 
of lines 23 and 25 on page 4. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Feaver testified they oppose SB397, indicating they feel 
SB397 reads very much like Executive Order 04-89, which the 
Governor issued a few weeks ago. He stated you should never 
put on the table what you think you already have, unless you 
believe that you do not already have that authority. He 
indicated it appears, by the introduction of SB397 into this 
Legislature, that the Governor feels he does not have the 
authority to do what he wants to do in Executive Order 04-89. 
Mr. Feaver stated that, if he does have that authority, he 
should not have introduced this bill, and he should have acted 
as if he had that authority, and continued thereon. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 7 of 24 

He noted that, notwithstanding, they have some question about 
the purpose of the bill, indicating that, if the purpose of 
SB397 is simply to review and determine if rules adopted by 
state agencies, licensing boards, etc. are consistent with 
statute, or their constitutional authority, and the Governor 
gives advice to those boards, that seems to be okay. However, 
Mr. Feaver stated, if the purpose of SB397 is to empower the 
Governor to infringe upon the constitutional or statutory 
authority of various state boards, they feel SB397 is inap­
propriate, as is Executive Order 04-89, and is an intrusion 
by the Governor upon the rights, responsibilities and duties 
of other institutions within our state government. He added 
tha t, regardless, they feel the Governor I s review must be 
subject to public comment, must be open to the same hearings 
process that the agencies developing rules undergo, and there 
must be the opportunity for the public to see all the docu­
mentation the Governor brings to bear to make his decision 
pertaining to those rules. Mr. Feaver stated that SB397, as 
well as the Executive Order, is an enlargement of government, 
an enlargement of administration of government, noting the 
cost to government will expand, and costs to those interest 
groups that have particular licensing boards or agencies with 
which they are concerned, will grow. He indicated they hope 
the committee will give a do not pass to SB397. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Fenderson testified that they oppose both SB396 and SB397, 
indicating he will combine his comments. 

He stated that he comes before the committee a little sur­
prised that the administration wants to expand the bureaucracy 
of the state, noting that he understood they wanted to cut 
down. Mr. Fenderson indicated that the systems they have 
worked with for many years, with the trade associations they 
deal with, and the licensing boards for blasters, electri­
cians, plumbers, the health department, etc., have sometimes 
been frustrating, but added that, win or lose, they believe 
the system has worked. He noted the author i ty for the 
Governor to appoint his own department heads, and the con­
sti tutional break-up of the other elected officials, has 
worked over the years. He indicated they think the system 
should be allowed to continue as is, and that another level 
of bureaucracy is not needed in this state. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Jensen testified they are in opposi tion to SB396. He 
noted the commi ttee has heard from the natural resource 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 8 of 24 

extraction industries about how bad the rules and regulations 
are, under which they operate, but pointed out that the 
committee has not heard a single specific comment regarding 
which rule, which regulation, and how it affects the appli­
cants. 

Mr. Jensen indicated one thing about Montana's poli tical 
process is that it is open, and members of the Legislature are 
close to the people, noting there is no question that this is 
important to the people of Montana. He stated the Legislature 
sets the policies, and the agencies are instructed by the 
Legislature to write rules to implement those policies. He 
stated, however, unelected people appointed by the Governor 
to a commission will step in between the legislators and their 
constituents, and the Legislature and the agencies, and make 
recommendations, possibly very extraordinary recommendations, 
to the Governor, which will have, in their view, potential, 
and the intent, to undermine legislation passed since 1972, 
and the constitutional guarantee for a clean and healthful 
environment, which is included in the new constitution. 

Mr. Jensen stated they have heard much from the administration 
about the problems of the rules and regulations, and the red 
tape of industry, and yet they have never heard, even when 
they specifically asked, which rules. He asked to be told one 
rule that has stopped industry from developing in Montana; one 
that is unreasonable, noting that not one time has one rule 
been pointed out by either the administration, or industry, 
but yet this powerful commission is being created to come 
between the Legislature and the agencies, and to make recom­
mendations, outside the political process. He stated that is 
a bad precedent, and they think the people in the state should 
be involved, either through elected officials, or through the 
ordinary rule-making process, through public hearings and 
public meetings, before any rules are changed. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Baker's written testimony is attached as Exhibit 11. 

Questions From Committee Members: 

Q. Senator Rapp-Svrcek indicated that, in Senator Meyer's 
opening statement, he said SB397 would allow the Governor 
to oversee what his department heads are doing, noting 
that, if SB165 passes, he will have power, not only over 
his department heads, but over the assistant department 
heads and division administrators. Senator Rapp-Svrcek 
asked Senator Meyer why the Governor does not have that 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 9 of 24 

power of oversight now, indicating he is getting the 
sense that the Governor does not trust even the people 
he has appointed to head his departments. 

A. Senator Meyer responded that, as an example, last April, 
the Department of Highways established a new rule that 
any trailer house coming into Montana 10' wide, or wider, 
would have to have 5 cars in the front and in the back 
of it. He noted this would increase the cost of a 
trailer house probably by $1,000 or $1,200, indicating 
that, if that rule had been run through the Governor's 
office, they may have been able to eliminate one of the 
flag cars, which would result in the price of that 
trailer house being much cheaper for the young people in 
the State of Montana. 

Q. Senator Rapp-Svrcek indicated he is not sure he got the 
answer to his question, but will move on. He stated this 
bill would allow the Governor's office review of rules 
by any office, position, commission, committee, board, 
department, council, division, bureau, section, or any 
other entity or instrumentality of the executive branch 
of state government and, in those reviews, the Governor 
would be required to coordinate the rules, review the 
adequacy of the agency's rationale, insure that the 
review has complied with the review section, and also 
insure that the english language and grammar are correct. 
Senator Rapp-Svrcek asked Senator Meyer, if the Governor 
is doing all this, what else is he going to have time 
for. 

A. Senator Meyer responded he does not think it will take 
him that long to do this, noting the Governor has the 
people to do it. Senator Meyer indicated this bill has 
come up twice before, but never got introduced. 

Chairman Farrell announced the hearing on SB397 as closed. 

HEARING ON SB 396 

Presentation and Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

Senator Darryl Meyer indicated that SB396 is an extension of 
SB397, and will allow the Governor to look at the rules, and 
make some changes, noting there are possibly some rules that 
are outdated, outmoded, that they should be changed, and this 
will give the Governor's office a chance to clean them up. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 10 of 24 

List of Testifying Proponents and What Group they Represent: 

Robert A. Ellerd, Governor's Office 
Jim Mockler, Executive Director, Montana Coal Council 
Rose Hughes, Montana Health Care Association 
Roger Tippy, attorney, representing himself 
Alec Hanson, Montana League of Cities and Towns 

Testimony: 

Mr. Ellerd indicated the proposed amendment by the Public 
Service Commission would be accepted, noting it was an 
oversight they were not included, and that it would also be 
accepted in this bill. He added the amendments the committee 
has covers the same situation in both bills. Mr. Ellerd 
stated that the Governor feels these need reviewing, and that 
the commission would not be large, and would not create a 
large expense. He referred to the question regarding whether 
the Governor will have enough time, and stated he is sure the 
Governor will find the time to do what is necessary, what the 
bill demands, and that he supports this bill. He indicated 
they are not looking for a very large increase, that there are 
people on staff that can do the work regarding grammar, etc., 
adding that there will probably be a small fiscal note. He 
asked the committee for their support on the bill on behalf 
of the Governor's office. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Mockler testified he is convinced that SB396 could 
possibly save the state a lot of money. He stated that anyone 
wishing to know which rules have gone into effect, and are 1n 
contention, only has to go to the Department of Revenue, the 
Department of State Lands, or any other department, and see 
how many law suits have been filed over those rules. He 
indicated that, of the ones he is familiar with, the state's 
track record has not been good at winning those. He noted 
that the Legislature passes a piece of legislation, turns it 
over with the intent, to the executive branch and, with that, 
has lost control. He pointed out that the Administrative Code 
Committee, although it still meets, has absolutely no power 
because the judge said, once it leaves the hands of the 
Legislature, and is in the executive branch, you can not 
interfere with those powers. Mr. Mockler stated he thinks 
this bill will allow the Governor's office to appoint a 
commission to hear problems and, perhaps, be able to resolve 
those problems before going to court. He indicated they have 
been to court, and have won, but it is a long, expensive 
process, both for the state and for the taxpayer, or the 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 11 of 24 

regulated entity. He noted they have an on-going program to 
review the rules of the Department of State Lands, and he does 
not have any great problem over that, but he thinks anyone who 
does should have the option of appearing before a commission 
to explain their conflict, and let the commission clean them 
up, rather than the court. Mr. Mockler stated he thinks it 
is a good plan, and one the committee should support. 

Testimony: 

Ms. Hughes testified they support SB396, and that she sees 
this bill as one that might clean up what has become a 
cumbersome set of rules in this state. She indicated that, 
in the health care field that she is familiar with, the 
Department of Health, SRS and Family Services, and sometimes 
the Department of Institutions, have rules that sometimes 
overlap and, in some cases, conflict with each other. Ms. 
Hughes stated this is very difficult for those who are on the 
regulated side to know what is expected of them. She indi­
cated she sees the process being asked for here as one in 
which they will take a look at what is on the books, try to 
make more sense of it, and try to put it together in a fashion 
that the people who are regulated know what is expected of 
them, noting she sees this as a very good move. 

Ms. Hughes stated that, not too many years ago, the Legisla­
ture went through the same kind of process with the Montana 
statutes, and there was a total review and recodification of 
the laws on the books. She noted there was a lot of legisla­
tion, dur ing that time, to repeal laws which were incon­
sistent, no longer appropriate, or conflicted with other laws 
on the books. She added that this has been done with the 
statutes but, to her knowledge, has not been done with the 
rules, and she thinks it is probably time that it be done. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Tippy reported that Mr. Ellerd asked him to look these 
bills over, and share any comments or reactions he might have. 
He noted he assumes it was not on behalf of independent 
bankers, beer wholesalers, or anyone else, but that it was 
because of his background, over the last 16 years, in the 
administrative procedure act. Mr. Tippy gave a brief history 
of his work with the state administrative procedure act, and 
noted he took Mr. Ellerd's request to review these bills in 
that light. 

Mr. Tippy stated that SB396 looks at existing rules, and 
indicated the Administrative Code Committee has, from time to 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 12 of 24 

time, endeavored to review existing rules. He noted that, in 
the 1975-76 interim, they took a small bureau or division that 
did not have a lot rules, went through them, examined them for 
authority, and for consistency with the statute. He stated 
that process identified, with Workers Comp, SRS, and the Board 
of Realty Regulations, a few rules that were suspect, and led 
to the agency taking action to clean them up. Mr. Tippy 
indicated the Administrative Code Committee has the ability, 
and the statutory obligation, to continue to be involved in 
this process, noting he does not see that in SB396, and would 
encourage the sponsors to draft an amendment to say that this 
would be in consultation with the Administrative Code Commit­
tee. He added that it would put in a more bipartisan aspect 
to this process, not that it should be partisan in any sense 
now. 

As an example, noting this will pertain to SB397 and asked the 
committee's indulgence, Mr. Tippy reported that, after MAPA 
went on the books, the Board of Plumbers came out with a rule 
that no one could use PVC pipe in do-it-yourself work fixing 
their own plumbing. He reported there was a fire storm of 
protest, but the Board of Plumbers stuck fast by their rule. 
He indicated that, even though the Administrative Code 
Committee held a hearing with the Board of Plumbers, Governor 
Judge finally wrote the Board saying they should set that rule 
aside, that it does not appear to be in the public interest 
to promulgate that rule. Mr. Tippy noted that, whether or not 
you need to institutionalize that process, the way SB397 
suggests, and the way federal government does with the office 
of management and budget, and larger states do, you have to 
recognize that no legislative committee can do anything more 
than jaw-bone. He noted that, if elected officials can take 
the political wishes of the people, and other factors, into 
account in dealing with what the bureaucracy wants in a rule, 
it must be through the Governor' s office; the Governor' s 
office hires all of the agencies that should be under this 
bill, and this is probably where the responsibility should be 
vested. 

Mr. Tippy asked if anyone had commented, in earlier testimony, 
on the 6-month limit on rule-making. He indicated that, once 
it is put in the administration register, the agency must go 
to final promulgation within 6 months of that date, adding 
that SB397 would create a time factor that would carry the 
agency beyond that 6 months, and they would have to publish 
a new notice to get it in. He stated the bill probably needs 
an amendment which would hold that 6-month period so that the 
Governor's office review, if it took another 90 days, would 
still allow the Secretary of State to eventually publish the 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 13 of 24 

rule. He indicated the time it takes to read an administra­
tive register, every two weeks, or twice a month, can vary 
from 30 minutes to several hours, and is something he has to 
do, noting the bill requires someone in the Governor's office 
to do that. He stated he does not see it as an FTE, in terms 
of work load, but that it depends on how thorough they wish 
to be in following-up phone calls to affected parties, going 
out and soliciting feed-back, and indicated it could be a 
full-time job. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Hanson stated his support for this bill is compelled by 
an exper ience they had last year with the Department of 
Revenue over the implementation of HB436. He indicated HB436 
set up a system to do sales assessment ratio studies, to 
annually re-evaluate property in the residential/commercial 
categories, based on a sampling, and conducted by the Depart­
ment of Revenue. He stated that every step of that process, 
every decision that was made, went against the cities and 
towns, schools and counties of this state. He indicated they 
felt the process was unfair, that the rules were unreasonable, 
and that they had very little opportunity to comment on the 
rules. Mr. Hanson corrected himself, stating they had every 
opportunity to comment, but had very little opportunity to 
affect the decision that was ultimately made on the rules. 

Mr. Hanson indicated that, under HB436, the Department was 
supposed to develop rules for the implementation of a study 
to determine the value of residential and commercial property 
in 13 districts across the state. He stated that, after the 
rules were developed, they were supposed to be heard, changed, 
if possible, based on public comment, and then the study was 
to be conducted. He reported the Department did it backwards; 
they conducted the study, wrote the rules, wrapping the rules 
around the study, and then held the public hear ing. He 
indicated they brought 10 or 15 people to Helena to testify 
on the rules, they pointed out some of the problems with the 
study and some of the problems with rules, there was no one 
at the hearing that supported the Department's implementation 
of the rules and the study but, after the hearing, they went 
back to their offices, and did not change a comma, paragraph, 
or other punctuation mark, in their entire study. 

Mr. Hanson stated that he thinks the way this study came out 
was totally inadequate and, if they can do this to the cities 
and the counties, they can do it to people. He noted it was 
a twisted interpretation of the constitution, and some of the 
things that came out of the study were totally unacceptable. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989· 

Page 14 of 24 

He stated that, as an example of one of the deficiencies they 
identified in the implementation of HB436, the state constitu­
tion says that property has to be equalized, and noted that 
HB436 said that, if the value in one of the districts decreas­
ed by less than 10%, the Department was not required to adjust 
the taxable valuation in that district for the purposes of 
levying mils. He reported the Department said that particular 
provision of the law violated the equalization provision of 
the constitution. He noted that, in the case of the City of 
Billings, their value, based on the study, declined 7% and, 
under the law, they should not have been affected but, under 
the rules adopted by the Department, they were forced to 
reduce their taxable value 7%, which cost the City of Billings 
a considerable amount of tax revenue. He noted that, at the 
same time, the Department said those areas in which the value 
increased were controlled by SB7l, which implemented the 
property tax freeze. Mr. Hanson indicated he asked the 
Department, and is asking this committee, how does the 
constitution apply in those areas where property value 
decreased, and why doesn't the same constitution apply with 
regard to equalization in those areas where the property value 
increased. He indicated this is an example of the twisted 
interpretation of this law, and he thinks the people were 
denied access to the government process, they had no oppor­
tunity whatsoever to affect any change in the proposed rules, 
and the only alternative they had was district court. He 
noted that, when a public agency abuses the rule-making 
authority, the only place they can go for redress is district 
court, and there has to be somewhere else to go. He stated 
he thinks the Governor's office is an appropriate place and, 
for that reason, he supports this bill. 

List of Testifying Opponents and What Group They Represent: 

Mike Cooney, Secretary of State 
Eric Feaver, Montana Education Association 
Kathy Irigon, State Auditor's Office 

Testimony: 

Mr. Cooney stated he is here to testify in opposition to 
SB396. He indicated he saw the amendments that the Governor's 
office came forward with and that some of his testimony, 
although written in such a way as to be in opposition to the 
bill, will demonstrate why the committee should seriously look 
at the amendments, adding he hopes the committee will support 
them. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 15 of 24 

Mr. Cooney indicated that, during his campaign for office, he 
stated there were many administrative rules which are not 
totally understandable and he pledged that, if elected, he 
would work with the Governor and his agencies to try and 
improve the clarity of adopted rules. He stated that he 
believed then, and believes now, that rules should be written 
in plain English, and not unintelligible jargon. Mr. Cooney 
stated that one of his first acts as Secretary of State was 
to write to the Governor, expressing his desire to work with 
him in making the rules more understandable. 

Mr. Cooney stated that SB396 would allow the Governor to 
create and fund a commission to review and approve all rules 
and regulations promulgated by state government. He noted the 
committee has heard testimony today that this authority would 
allow the Governor to rid the state of unnecessary bureau­
cratic red tape and, while he applauds this goal, he remains 
unconvinced that the addition of another step in the rule­
making process will, due to its very existence, create better 
rules and regulations. 

Mr. Cooney stated he rises in opposition to SB396 for several 
reasons. He noted the Montana Constitution clearly outlines 
the duties of the individual constitutional officers of state 
government, and that his duty as Secretary of State is to 
maintain official records of the executive branch and the acts 
of the Legislature, as provided by law. He indicated the law 
provides that, among other duties, he serve as the state's 
chief election officer, adding that his office handles 
corporate and uniform commercial code filings, and he is 
responsible for the publication of the Montana Administrative 
Register and the Administrative Rules of Montana. He stated 
that SB396 would have him perform certain of his duties only 
wi th the consent of the Governor, in particular, any rule 
promulgated by this office would be subject to approval of the 
Governor. He indicated he publishes rules only in conformity 
with his duties to the people of Montana under the laws of 
this state and, if SB396 passes in its current form, it will 
give the Governor the authority to tell him how he is to 
perform his duties. He noted that the people, not the 
Governor, have elected him Secretary of State to carry out the 
constitutional and statutory obligations of that office. He 
stated the people of this state shall judge his performance 
and, if they are not happy with his actions, they will vote 
him out of office. 

Mr. Cooney noted that, in addition to this major constitution­
al defect, the bill suffers other problems. He indicated it 
is still unclear to him if it is the intent of this legisla-



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 16 of 24 

tion to replace the existing rule-making structure, as 
described by law. He stated that, currently, each of the 
Governor's agencies must designate one person who is respon­
sible for rules, and each agency must make a biennial review 
of its rules to determine what changes must be made, and that 
the Legislature determines the fiscal impact of each piece of 
legislation, and decides accordingly. Mr. Cooney stated the 
rules are an outgrowth of the legislation, and are reviewed 
by the Legislative Council to determine their conformity with 
the statutes. He noted the Secretary of State reviews the 
rules for technical compliance with format, style, and 
arrangement for publication, adding the Secretary of State and 
the Administrative Code Committee may include such editorial 
notes, cross-references, and other matters, as they deem 
necessary. Mr. Cooney stated he is not about to try and lead 
this committee to believe that they, in state government, are 
doing all they can in the area of rules and regulations, 
noting there are improvements that need to be made. He 
pointed out that, however, there is also a frame-work current­
ly in place, SB396 would duplicate, in the Governor's office 
to perform this function. He noted that, if the Governor 
feels there is room for improvement in this area, to improve 
the functionality of the existing frame-work, he is ready and 
willing to work with him in this regard. He stated it appears 
that the Governor has the proper tools for review of state 
rules at his disposal, that the directors of state agencies 
work at his pleasure, and he can certainly instruct his 
employees how to conduct the business of the executive. He 
stated it would be unfortunate if more money were spent on 
yet another bureaucratic commission, which may serve only to 
add another step in the rule-making process. 

Mr. Cooney stated that, in addition, SB396 appears to limit 
the impact of public involvement in the rule-making process. 
He indicated that, under the Montana Administrative Procedures 
Act, public participation is encouraged, and noted that, after 
publication of a proposed rule change, public comments are 
sought in order to perfect the proposal prior to publication 
of the adopted rule. He indicated the intent is clearly to 
include public comments and concerns in the final rule, 
however, SB396 would allow the Governor to review and edit any 
rule, after the public comment period has expired. He stated 
this is not good government, and we must encourage public 
comment on the rules that affect them. He asked the committee 
to remember that rules and regulations have the same effect 
as law and, to circumvent the process which provides for 
public input, would, in his opinion, be a serious mistake. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 17 of 24 

Mr. Cooney stated he was not asked to submit a fiscal note on 
this legislation, but indicated the potential fiscal impact 
to his office, he believes, is cogent to a thorough under­
standing of this bill. He noted that SB396 does not exist in 
a vacuum and if, subsequent to review of existing rules, the 
Governor sees fit to change any or all of them, these changes 
will need to be published by the secretary of state's office. 
He indicated the publication of proposed changes costs money, 
that each additional page of the Montana Administrative 
Register is published at a raw printing cost to this office 
of $16, per page, and noted that any editing of existing state 
rules and regulations may require the appropriation of more 
money to cover the cost, and personnel costs, associated with 
this act. 

Mr. Cooney stated the Administrative Rules of Montana cur­
rently comprise approximately 11,000 pages of rules and 
regulations. He cited the example that, assuming the 
Governor's commission recommends changing 10% of the existing 
rules and regulations, just the printing costs associated with 
this action would be in excess of $30,000, indicating the 
level of this financial commitment is clearly in the hands of 
the Governor, and it is his office that will determine the 
scope of the change, and thus, the level of financial commit­
ment. Mr. Cooney stated he wants to be clear on this point: 
If it is the will of the Governor, and the Legislature, to 
undertake this task, he is equal to the challenge, but noted, 
however, it is his responsibility to apprise the committee of 
any potential fiscal impact which may affect the state budget. 
He indicated that, for these reasons, he would hope that the 
committee recommends that this do not pass. He stated he 
remains committed to work with the Governor to accomplish the 
worthwhile goal of improving the rules that affect all of us, 
but that SB396, in its current form, is a bad bill, and should 
not pass. 

Testimony: 

Mr. Feaver stated he supports the Secretary of State's 
comments, entirely, and added, regarding Mr. Hanson's refer­
ence to HB436, rule making did, in fact, impact negatively on 
school districts in the state, but indicated the rules that 
implemented HB436 were the decision of then Governor 
Schwinden's Department of Revenue. He added that, in fact, 
those rules were very consistent with what Governor Schwinden 
said was his personal interpretation of Initiative 105. Mr. 
Feaver stated he would doubt very seriously, even if SB396 
were in effect, or SB397 were adopted, that there would have 
been any appeal to the Governor which would have changed the 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 18 of 24 

implementation of rules affecting HB436, noting he would 
seriously question whether an appointed official of the 
Governor, adopting rules consistent with the Governor's 
articulation of his interests, or his interpretation of 
Initiative 105, would have offered relief to those persons 
damaged by the rule-making process surrounding HB436. He 
noted he does not see SB396 or SB397 correcting that cir­
cumstances, stating we are talking about people and agencies 
that work directly for the Governor. 

Mr. Feaver stated he is glad there will be a fiscal note 
because, without it, it leaves one open to speculate as to how 
large the commission will be: 3, 5, IS? He indicated one 
would question what the qualifications of the commission might 
be: farmers, teachers, lawyers, contributors to the political 
fortunes of various candidates? He further indicated one 
would wonder about the notion of term: the term is not 
specified and, in fact, the Governor can designate the term 
and, later on, on page 2, we discover that he can remove the 
commissioners, noting that, apparently, the term is whatever 
the Governor says it is, but he can modify that term at his 
pleasure. Regarding salary and expenses, Mr. Feaver indicated 
the salary could be anything, noting that, if the Legislature 
were to adopt this bill, there is an open invitation for the 
Governor to establish whatever salary he sees fit. He added 
the Governor can establish his own rules of order for the 
proceedings of that commission, and questioned if there was 
any independency to this, at all, stating that very authority 
perhaps already exists with the Governor, as has already been 
articulated, and the commission seems totally unnecessary. 

Mr. Feaver directed the committee's attention to page 2. He 
pointed out, on line 13, regarding the authority, powers or 
duties of the commission, that the commission would determine 
whether each rule is necessary, and asked, based on what? He 
stated it is a wholly subjective notion, whether the rule is 
necessary. He referred to line 16, which states "review the 
adequacy of the agency's rationale", and indicated one would 
have to get into the minds of those persons who si t on a 
commi ttee, board, or agency, to review the rationale. He 
indicated there is, of course, legislative intent, as sug­
gested on line 23, page 2, and it has already been articulated 
that it does seem appropriate for the administration to look 
at legislative intent. Mr. Feaver referred to page 3, 
indicating that, in subsection (4) of Section 1, the Governor 
may, in writing, order an executive branch agency to amend or 
repeal rules, or adopt new rules, as specified by the 
Governor, and indicated this bill seems to suggest that the 
Governor, by himself, may become the independent agency, and 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 19 of 24 

can impose rules, amend rules, delete rules, without any 
process, whatsoever, that may impact upon those parties who 
are concerned with those rules. Be added the Governor can do 
that unilaterally within a very short period of time, that 
there is no apparent hearings process, and no public input. 

Mr. Feaver went on to point out that, most remarkably of all, 
new Section 3, on page 3, stated "This act terminates 4 years 
after the effective date of this act." He indicated one would 
question why there is any termination date in this bill, and 
asked, if the Governor has the power already, why SB396, why 
SB397? He further asked, if the Governor does not have the 
power, and gets this power by these 2 bills, why sunset? Mr. 
Feaver also asked, if this is such a good idea now, why is it 
not a good idea forever, at least so far as the Legislature 
ever sees anything as forever? 

Mr. Feaver stated SB396 is unnecessary, and he hopes the 
committee will give it a do not pass. 

Testimony: 

Ms. Irigon reported that, in talking with personnel from the 
Governor's office, they were advised that intent of the 
Governor's office in this bill was not to have it apply to the 
offices administered by elected officials. She pointed out 
that, however, on page 3, line 2, it states "The Governor may, 
in writing, order an executive branch agency, as defined in 
(statute), to •• " do this, that and the other. She noted 
that, in looking at the definition contained on line 3, page 
3 of that statute, it does encompass all state agencies, 
including those state agencies administered by elected 
officials. Ms. Irigon stated that, to have the bill reflect 
what the Governor's office intended in drafting it, they have 
some amendments which would make the bill apply only to the 
departments that are directly under the Governor's office, 
and would exclude from application of the bill, the attorney 
general, state auditor, secretary of state, and superintendent 
of public instruction. Ms. Irigon distributed copies of the 
amendments to the committee, a copy of which is attached as 
Exhibit 13. She indicated that neither these proposed 
amendments to SB396, nor the proposed amendments to SB397, 
offered earlier, include the public service commission, noting 
that is an oversight they carr ied from the references to 
elected officials in SB397, which omitted the public service 
commission, and that they did not intentionally mean to have 
the bill apply to the public service commission, and not any 
other elected officials. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 20 of 24 

Questions From Committee Members: 

Vice Chairman Hofman advised the committee that any questions, 
which would have been directed to Senator Meyer, should be 
directed to Mr. Ellerd. 

Q. Senator Rasmussen asked if the Governor has considered 
having his department heads review the rules, as one 
option. 

A. Mr. Ellerd responded that he would say the Governor would 
certainly follow that procedure, if that would help to 
promulgate these rules and regulations. 

Q. Senator Rasmussen asked if Mr. Ellerd thought that would 
take care of the problem. 

A. Mr. Ellerd responded that it might help. 

Vice Chairman announced the hearing on SB396 as closed. 

HEARING ON SB 395 

Presentation and Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

Senator Paul Boylan indicated that SB395 has to do with the 
student body at the U of M and MSU, and that they want to 
expand this into other units of the university. 

List of Testifying Proponents and What Group they Represent: 

Mike Craig, Associated Students of the University of Montana 
Tom upton, President, Associated Students of Montana State 

University 

Testimony: 

Mr. Craig reported they have proposed amendments to the bill, 
indicating they do not change the substance of the bill, or 
the intent. He indicated that, where the word "government" 
appears in the bill, they would like to substitute "associa­
tions". Mr. Craig distributed copies of the proposed amend­
ments to the committee members, a copy of which is attached 
as Exhibit 15. He noted that, as Senator Boylan stated, they 
would also like to include the student associations at the 4 
colleges, along with the 2 universities, in this bill. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 21 of 24 

Mr. Craig reported that the student associations being 
restricted to state procurement laws often results in pur­
chases of supplies or services at pr ices over those for 
comparable purchases in the private sector. He stated that 
SB395 would amend those laws to give the student associations 
the option, and he stressed option, of making purchases of 
supplies or services off campus. He indicated that having the 
ability to shop around would allow student groups to spend 
association money more efficiently, noting that, if price 
comparisons result in a purchase being less expensive on 
campus, the student groups could retain that option. He 
stated that both student governments at MSU and the U of M 
would consider amendments to their respective fiscal policies 
that would restrict out-of-state purchases if, in fact, those 
purchases can be made either on campus or in Montana, and 
noted they have no intention of taking their business out of 
state, that they do not want that to happen, at all. Mr. 
Craig distributed copies of the proposed amendments, a copy 
of which is attached as Exhibit 16. 

Mr. Craig reported that ASUM will be asked to adopt a bidding 
policy where purchases in excess of $300 will be accompanied 
with at least 3 written quotes, or will be done through 
central purchasing on campus, noting this is outlined in the 
second paragraph of the handout just distributed. He stated 
this would safeguard possible abuses of student funds, and is 
similar to the University of Montana's central purchasing 
policy number 120. He noted that he has backup in which they 
did some price comparisons of the University of Montana office 
supplies from Delaney's Office Products and Wyckman' s, in 
Missoula. Mr. Craig distributed copies of the price compari­
sons, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 17, and pointed 
out that, in 6 cases, both of the off-campus comparisons are 
better prices. He noted that, in 3 of the cases, at least one 
price was better off-campus, adding that, in 4 cases, there 
are better prices on-campus. He indicated they would like to 
retain that option. He then pointed out that, at the bottom, 
there is a quick comparison of instructional material 
services, noting they are currently confined to purchasing 
their services for video, or any type of visual aids that the 
student association groups would like to use in their acti­
vities. He noted that the prices speak for themselves, 
indicating they think this is a good, common sense bill, and 
an efficient use of student funds, which are state funds. 



Testimony: 

SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 22 of 24 

Mr. upton distributed a copy of their brochure, a copy of 
which is attached as Exhibit 19. He stated they are in favor 
of SB395. 

Mr. upton testified they have 4 major reasons for supporting 
and backing this bill, the first of which is the increase in 
administrative time that this has caused, since both ASMU and 
the University of Montana student governments have been forced 
to use the state purchasing system. He stated that ASMU has 
consistently proven itself to be fiscally responsible, that 
they have been audited by the state, and have brought in 
outside auditors, private accounting firms, to look over 
various committees. He indicated that the administrative time 
takes away from the purpose of the student association at the 
university level, noting that their purpose, other than 
serving and representing the students in bodies such as this, 
is to learn, to develop leadership skills, and learn how to 
better manage resources. He noted that, possibly, several of 
the committee's colleagues are former student body officers 
at either ASUM or ASMSU. 

Mr. upton stated that, because of the state purchasing system, 
they find themselves spending more and more time trying to 
understand the complexities of the state system, and spending 
less time actually doing what they were elected to do, which 
makes it extremely hard for them to accomplish as much as they 
would like to. He indicated the second reason is that 
Bozeman, Montana is really Montana State Uni versi ty, that 
Bozeman is a small community without MSU, and that ASMSU has, 
in the last 2 years, spent a lot of time trying to develop 
closer ties with the downtown Bozeman business community. He 
noted they have been fairly successful, and this bill will 
help them become more successful, adding they want to keep 
their money in Bozeman, and in Montana. Mr. Upton distr ibuted 
copies of a purchase order that went through state purchasing 
for one of their largest committees, a copy of which is 
attached as Exhibit 20. He noted they allocate approximately 
$130,000 a year to this committee. Mr. upton indicated the 
state purchase order was submitted in September, that the 
order was for 2,000 bars of soap, and they asked for the 
lowest bid on 2,000 bars of soap to be used in their P.E. 
complex. He pointed out that, on February 13, they finally 
got something back from a New York firm, which said they could 
supply soap to their Intramural Department for $.62 per bar. 
Mr. upton reported they called Safeway, in downtown Bozeman, 
who could supply it for $.51 per bar, noting they also called 
Albertson's and, in no case, was anything more expensive than 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 23 of 24 

what had been bid out of state, in New York. He indicated 
this is one small example of what the state purchasing system 
has done to them, and they would like to keep their money in 
the state, and in Bozeman. 

He stated this will help them save student funds, indicating 
that ASMSU is rather unique, that they do not fund any groups 
or clubs, and are like a mini-state government. He noted they 
fund entirely their own agencies, and have their own problems 
but, for the most part, their money directly benefits all 
student programs. He indicated a lot of their programs, 
because of their unique nature, are not designed for state 
purchasing, citing their auto repair shop as an example. He 
noted they have a shop where students, for $2 per hour, can 
bring in their car or truck, and do repairs under professional 
supervision, from taking out an engine, to changing the oil. 
He noted there is no other program like that in the state and, 
when the director of the auto repair shop has to go through 
state purchasing, often times, students are asked to wait 2 
to 3 months to get a necessary piece of equipment, especially 
an engine block, which costs over $300. He stated that not 
only seriously hurts their business, but it affects their 
ability to serve the students who pay their salaries. 

Mr. upton indicated ASUM has been asked to develop some 
internal controls to insure this will not lead to irrespon­
sible use of state money, and they already have those controls 
in place at ASMSU, for the most part. He noted all of their 
money goes back through the business office, they also have 
the advice of their internal auditor, work closely with the 
administration, and watch very closely the expendi ture of 
their money, since it is state money, assuring the committee 
there would be no abuses. 

List of Testifying Opponents and What Group They Represent: 

None. 

Questions from the Committee: 

None. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

Senator Boylan stated this is a good group to work with, and 
he is glad to see them cutting down the expense of going to 
school. He noted that, with the tuition increase, whatever 
can be saved in getting a higher education, he thinks will 
very helpful for them. 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 
February 15, 1989 

Page 24 of 24 

ADJOURNMENT 

Adjournment At: 11:30 a.m. 

WEF/mhu 
SB395.215 

, 

b~~t:I~ 
WILLIAM E. FARRELL, Chalrman 



ROLL CALL 

STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

DATE: 

~ 51ST LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

~~ /~ 19%' 

NAME PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 

HUBERT ABRAMS ~ 
JOHN ANDERSON, JR. V 

ESTHER BENGTSON V 
WILLIAM E. FARRELL ~ 

ETHEL HARDING 
~ 

SAM HOFMAN / 
PAUL RAPP-SVRCEK 

~ 

TOM RASMUSSEN / 
ELEANOR VAUGHN / 



SENATE STATE ADMlIl. 
EXHIBIT NOI_.-:' __ --

DATE. ~!t~/,'1 STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
J., r '" (J ttl7 
BilL NO. S6 3~' ,1 ,$4; 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

NAME: DATE: 

~~~/f72 
7 7 I 

Address: 

~one: 
Representing whom? 

A '-o/~/. 

Appearing on which proposal? 

~Lf S 9 h '- S't{} J' 9/' 

Do you: SUPPORT? ~MEND? --- OPPOSE? __ _ 

Comments: 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMllTEE SECRETARY 



~t.nRIt. ~IIU~ "U.'RI 
EXH!BIT NO_..:,lL-----

DATE ~!Jr/'I" 
BIll NO. '1, ,q" '" S&",1 

STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up I 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

NAME; ~ DATE: /S 
; 'f1= ~'l 

Address: 

Phone: 

Represenu~ f#,U 
Appearing on which proposal? 

39(,-- ~r7 

Do you: SUPPORT?~ AMEND? __ _ OPPOSE? __ _ 

Comments: 

, 
Ii 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY 

{I 

~ 



SENATE BILL 396 
Proposed Amendment 

1. Page 1, line 17. 
Following: IIMontana ll 

SEMAIE IrAtE ADMUI. 
EXHIBIT NQ, ....... .J.=;-----
DATL fA.ct' : 
BILL NO 5839(' 

I nsert: II As promulgated by agencies in the Executive Branch as 
defined in 2-15-102(2), MeAII 



SENATE BILL 397 
Proposed Amendment 

1. Page 1, line 17. 
Following: "Montana" 

'£NATE STATE ADMIN. 
£XHtfHT HO •. _ ..... 4 __ _ 
DATL ';/Ir/g if r, 
PILL NO. 5e> ?J'I1 

Insert: "As promulgated by agencies in the Executive Branch as 
defined in 2-15-102 (2), MeA" 



SENATt. ~ATt AUMIft. 
EXHIBIT NO.,_Jt/l:.£~ __ _ 

DATE.. ~iI!/f1 : STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

BIll NO. l6 39(', s8" Z 
WITNESS STATEMENT 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

LA /112 

Address: BJde. / Me 

Phone: 

Representing whom? 

MPC 

Appearing on which proposal? 

SE ]1~· 397 

Do you: SUPPORT? __ _ AMEND? __ _ OPPOSE? __ _ 

Comments: 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



~lt ~JAlt A!nIIn. 
fXlilBfT NO.---..;"~ __ _ 

DATE .J./Jr/g, 
j. 

., I 

BIll NO.~~J,,,.,83'1 I , 
WITNESS STATEMENT 

!Ii 

STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEj 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

/ NAME: DATE: 

d<-/~~-[S/ 

Address: 

Phone: 

Representing whom? 

-;22t-f-r / i!:h:(e~~~ (~{.e 
Appearing on which proposal? 

cJ/) , 9G V \. J 7 ~C07-

Do you: AMEND? __ _ OPPOSE? __ _ 

Comments: 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMIITEE SECRETARY 



-
.. 
.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

.. 

EXHIBIT NO._14-___ _ 

DATE e:I/lrjr9 ... STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

BIll NO ~'Jf', >IJ'~ 
WITNESS STATEMENT 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

NAME: DATE: 

{~(~ ?2~ :I-Is-if 

Address: n I if -X11+­
r.O ,/J61I- /671 - &44 t/j,u 

'Y1 I r u 
j / L, 1~"77"..z~?t/.J 6 

Appearing on which proposal? 

S8 39(:; 

Do you: SUPPORT? L AMEND? __ _ OPPOSE? __ _ 

Comments: 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



SfNATI STATE _It. 
EXHIBIT NO ~ I 
DATE. .2)1 ~ 'I STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEJ 

BIll NO. $83'1(,/ sea 112 ~ 
WITNESS STATEMENT I 

-(,'.1 

:i!, 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up I 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

NAMef. DATE:, 4 <) q 
~ ,'M ILL' V.I, L 't-.{2... 1-"Z:. ~ 1-5, l , \:) , 

Address: )A O\..\."\ ~\...l f\. e U dlv\ ~tft ~ M.AJ..~I2.~ ~ 
va \ """0 H "tL~tJ A Q( \' 

Phone: 

Representing whom? 
)v\-r e ~AM '3~ R- ~M tV( t V€-(,. ~ 

Appearing on which proposal? 

56 3« to Il~ \":) 3'11 

Do you: SUPPORT? AMEND? __ OPPOSE? __ 

Comments: 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



Amendment 

Senate Bill 397 
Submitted by the State Auditor's Office 
February 15, 1989 

1. Page 4, .line 15. 
Strike: "The" 

SENATE STATE ADM1L 
EXHIBIT No._2..;-___ _ 

DATE ef/'S'/11 :: 
~'ll NO. Sf.i9? 

Insert: "Except for the attorney general. state auditor. 
secretary of state. or superintendent of public 
instruction. the" 



DAT_~'-t-~ ___ _ STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

Phone: 

Representing Wa-i: J);.;1; ~ ~ 
Appearing on which proposal? 

sg~ ~2& - 3?z 

Do you: SUPPORT? __ _ AMEND? __ _ OPPOSE? _~ __ 

Comments: 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



SENATE SIAlt. #WMIIl. 

EXHIBIT NO_J-II-'---­
DATE. tAl, r Iii 
BIll NO ;13~'j S631} fJ I 

SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION 

FEBRUARY 15, 1989 

RE: SB 396 and SB 397 

My name is Tim Baker, and I am an attorney for the Hontana 

Department of Public Service 'Regulation, Public Service Commis-

sion. Although the Commission has not taken a formal position 

on either SB 396 or SB 397, they have asked me to appear to cor-

rect what is apparently an oversight. SB 397 provides for an 

exclusion from its application for elected state officials such 

as the Attorney General, State Auditor, Secretary of State, and 

the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Although SF 396 con-

tains no such exclusion on its face, I have been told that the 

hill is also not intended to apply to such elected state offi-

cials. This of course is consistent with the recent Executive 

Order of the Governor, dated January 31, 1989, which addressed 

the same topic as these bills, and also excluded elected state 

officials, including the Public Ser'Tice Commission. 

As you know, the Public Service Commission is comprised of 

five members, each elected from separate districts. The topics 

addressed by rulemaking proceedings before the Commission in-

clude very technical and specialized subjects. Often, the inter-

pretation and application of any Commission rules depends upon 

specific terms of art found in those rules. Of course, all rule-

making proceedings before the Commission are governed by the 

strict requirement s found in the Administrative Procedure Act. 

In addition to judicial review, the final product is also sub-



SENATE STATE ADMIH. 
EXHIBIT No.---..I';LI ___ _ 
DATE.. «!'s,laf 2 

81Ll No...1~Jqkl S63'1'~ ft" 
ject to the close scrutiny of the Legislative Council and the 

Administrative Code Committee. Consistent with the treatment 

accorded to other elected state officials, the Public Service 

Commission should also be excluded from the application of both 

SB 396 and SB 397. For SB 397, go to page one, lines 24 and 25 

after Secretary of State -- and the comma following, insert 

Department of Public Service Regulation. For SB 396, the Depart-

rnent of Public Service Regulation should be included in whatever 

exclusionary language is finally adopted to clarify this bill. 

These amendments have been discussed with both the primary spon-

sors of these bills and the Governor's office. 

Thank you. 



EXHIBIT NO,_...:;./.;.;~;.... __ _ 

DATE.. oljrjr1 STATE 
8IU NO_S&J'(,. $6J' 7, 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

• 
WITNESS STATEMENT 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

NAME: DATE: 

?( (S (lfT 
Address: 

Phone: 

Representing whom? 

Appearing on which proposal? 

Sf:, 3qb 

Do you: SUPPORT? __ _ AMEND? 

Comments: 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



Amendment 

Senate Bill 396 
Submitted by the State Auditor's Office 
February 15, 1989 

1. Page 1, line 14. 
Strike: "The" 
Insert: "Except as provided in sUbsection 

2. Page 2, line 3. 
Strike: "The" 
Insert: "Except as provided in subsection 

3. Page 2, line 24. 
Strike: "The" 
Insert: "Except as provided in subsection 

4. Page 3, line 2. 
Strike: "The" 
Insert: "Except as provided in subsection 

5. Page 3. 
Follwoing: 12 
Insert: 

a 

(~) 

SENATE STATE ADMII .. 

(5), 

(5), 

(5), 

(5), 

EXH: SIT Ntl.---J/l.;3:----. 
DATE .2hr,/f' 
Bill NO.' s S 39' 

the" 

the" 

the" 

the" 



SENATE STAT[ AUMII\. 
EXHIBIT NO~/~~~ __ _ 

DATE. 4fi flt1 
BfU NO 56J" 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

NAME: DATE: 

/'v\ ~ ke {) -IS -XS7 
Address: 

Phone: 

Representing whom? 

V1cscy 1L?r:>~ ,>.{=U67 tv'\-£ eXf-- (}JJnJ. uF )v1'7 . . 
Appearing on which proposal? 

5[6 $l})-

Do you: SUPPORT?K AMEND? __ _ OPPOSE? __ _ 

Comments: 

~fc t'M ",,1 5'1qf .;.1'1 ~s 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



Amendments to Senate BIll 395: 

Page 1 , Line 5: strikr.? "GOVERI'-W1EI\ITS" , 

Page 2, 1 i ne 12 : strike "governments", 

Pi"lge 3, 1 i ne 4 : str-ike "governments", 

Page 3, 1 j ne 6: strike "governments". 

insert 

insert 

insert 

insert 

SENATE STATE ADMIN. 
EXHIBIT NO._~/~ ___ _ 

DATE.. ;.prj11 
Btll NO_ sA .3'" -

"ASSOCIATIONS". 

"associations". 

"associations". 

"associations". 



SENATE STATE ADMIN. 
EXHIBIT No._'"':' ...... /~j,:--__ _ 
DATE_ .!2hr-1lJ 
BILL NO_

f ~392 = 

Proposed amendenments to the ASUM Fiscal Policy: 

N e \I'! 5 e c t ion. 

Ne\l'J Sec t i on. 

"ASLJJ1 or- any ASUJ1 organi zat j on wi 11 not make any 
purchases of products or services which are made 
pur~;uaTlt to 18-4-132 and 18-U-l03, MeA, upon the 
enactment of Senate Bill 395 during the 51st 
Montana Legislative Assembly that would result In 
any out-of-state purchase that could otherwise 
occur in Montana, Missoula. or on the campus of 
the Univel-sity of Montana." 

"?)SUM or any ASUM ol-ganization, whEn making a 
purchase for a product in excess of $300, will 
submit to the ASUM Accountant a minimum of three 
(3) written price quotes before authorization 
of such purchase will occur, or will otherwise 
obtain purchasing authorization after having 
CJ 0 net h T- 0 U g tIt, h f? Un i v e T- 5 i t Y a f M 0 n tan a bid din g 
proc~s5 as dEfi~ed in thE UnivErsity of Montana 
Cerltral Purchaslng Pol icy :\i 120." 



SENATE STATE ADMIN. 
EXHIBIT NO.,_1_7~ ___ 1 
DATE- ~/I~r2 
BIll NO._ 56325 

Lin i v of f'1ont 
Office Supplies 

1. Legal pad 
8 1/2" >: 11 ::1/f-j" x 4 

2. Legal pad 
5" x 8" x 2 

3. Typing paper 
B 1 /2" >: 11" x 200 

4. 3M Post-it Note Pads x 2 

5. Liquid Paper (brand name) 
6 fluid oz. 

6.1" l-adju!:;, ::1··ring binder 

7. Manilla envelopes 
10" x 13" >: 10 

8. American Pencils ~2 
box of 12 

9. Sic Round Stick pens (medium) 
bo), of 12 

10. Gem paper cl ip~ 
1 t j () /: [i f J () ('l 

] j 

; :.J 

Dennison file 12tel~ 

1 b (J>~ 0 f 25 C' 

3 - I-I S cot (h i'< 2 9 1 L l c-:' r (7-

1 .- 0 1 1 1 / 2 " >: 96(\ " 

13. High-light markers x 4 

14. Desk-top calender (1989) 

Instructional f'1atprial 
Service - Univ. of MT 

102.20 

$0.58 

$1.65 

$1.70 

$1.69 

$1 .55 

$1.30 

<11 .09 

$2.09 

52.29 

t 1 .09 

$3.16 

12.50 

-1\-

oj( 

DelanE'Ys Office 
E.r OC,uc_ts: 

$3.32 

$1.48 

!ld .65 

$0.79 

$0.85 

$2.59 

1,1 .O() 

$·0.79 

1; 1 .39 

$0. j S 

$ 1 • L; f:., 

41.96 

$2.99 

PJational 
'/ideD 

veFI ~, TV r entc'll <t 2 1. 60 (4 h 0 u r 5 ) oj( VCR (2 (-1 h r s ) 

$38.00 (12 hours) * TV (2 t f hI'S) 
-;2.95 
~2.9S 

* 
oj( 

~1. S9 

<to.88 

$1 .65 

$1.02 

$1.09 

$1 .79 

41 . (-0 

d n ce, 
~ '.' • 7_ 

Sol .69 

1: ;.:: • _' r: J 
12. ", 

10. {::,9 

Picl:-~-

F 1 i c I; ------



~tNAlt ~IIUt hUM.", 

EXHIBIT HO,_~I $::.-__ _ 

DATE.. #' f/S ' 
Bill NO 56~q5 

STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

To be filled out by a person testifying or a person who would not like to stand up 
and speak but wants their testimony entered into the record. 

NAME: 

j 

~-.--

i 0 tl IJ.2Ti2n 

Address: 
loorY} 'Of[l - S ul3 

Phone: 

Representing whom? 

f/sffj l-L 

Appearing on which proposal? 

-5/3 31"5" 

Do you: SUPPORT? _'_X_ 

Comments: 

AMEND? __ _ 

DATE: 

;J.- (5 --~ Cj 

OPPOSE? __ _ 

PLEASE LEAVE ANY PREPARED STATEMENTS WITH THE COMMITIEE SECRETARY 



B
A

n:
 S

TA
TE

 A
DM

I'; 
"\

:~
 

EX
HI

BI
T 

NO
 
~
 
,
-
;
 

D
A

rt
 
#/
~'
 

: 
B

il
l 

NO
 
~
A
 3
1
~
 

.:
 

T
H

E
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
D

 S
T

U
D

E
N

T
S

 
o

r 
M

O
N

T
A

N
A

 S
T

A
T

E
 U

N
IV

E
R

S
IT

Y
 

_
_

_
 W

H
A

T
 I

S 
A

S
M

S
U

? 
_

_
 _ 

T
h

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
S

tu
de

nt
s 

of
 M

on
ta

na
 S

ta
te

 U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

(A
SM

SU
) 

Is
 a

n
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

co
m

p
o

se
d

 o
f 

st
ud

en
ts

, 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

st
ud

en
ts

. 
an

d 
Is 

co
n

ce
rn

ed
 w

it
h 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
st

ud
en

ts
 t

hr
ee

 a
re

as
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e:
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
ti

on
, 

ed
u

­
ca

ti
on

, a
n

d
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f v
ar

io
us

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 L

et
's

 lo
ok

 a
t 

ea
ch

 a
re

a 
In

di
V

id
ua

lly
. 

R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 

T
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

A
SM

SU
 P

re
si

de
nt

 a
n

d
 th

e 
A

S
M

S
U

 S
en

at
e.

 
st

ud
en

t c
on

ce
rn

s 
an

d 
op

in
io

ns
 a

re
 v

oi
ce

d 
to

 t
h

e 
M

S
U

 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f 

R
eg

en
ts

. 
B

ot
h 

of
 

th
es

e 
tw

o 
or

ga
ni

za
ti

on
s 

ar
e 

m
os

t 
di

re
ct

ly
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r 

se
tt

in
g 

th
e 

p
o

h
d

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

fo
ll

ow
ed

 b
y 

M
SU

. 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 

E
ve

ry
th

in
g 

th
at

 A
S

M
S

U
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

to
 th

e 
st

u
d

en
t b

od
y 

Is
 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
o

r 
go

ve
rn

ed
 b

y 
st

ud
en

ts
. 

T
h

er
e 

ar
e 

20
 

po
si

ti
on

s,
 e

le
ct

ed
 b

ia
nn

ua
ll

y.
 o

n
 t

h
e 

A
S

M
S

U
 S

en
at

e.
 

In
 a

dd
it

io
n.

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ar

ou
nd

 2
00

 p
os

it
io

ns
 fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s 
o

n
 o

u
r 

va
ri

ou
s 

co
m

m
lt

le
es

 a
n

d
 b

o
ar

d
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 
va

lu
ab

le
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
10

 Ih
e 

In
di

vi
du

al
 a

nd
 e

n
h

an
ce

 th
ei

r 
ov

er
al

l 
ed

uc
at

io
n.

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

A
S

M
S

U
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
o

f 
se

rv
lr

es
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 e
ac

h 
an

d
 e

ve
ry

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
fe

e 
pa

yi
ng

 s
tu

de
nt

 
at

 M
SU

. 
A

n 
ac

ti
vi

ty
 f

ee
 

pa
yi

ng
 s

tu
d

en
t 

Is
 a

n
y

o
n

e 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 7

 o
r 

m
or

e 
cr

ed
it

s.
 

T
h

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f 

th
is

 
pa

m
ph

le
t I

s 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
re

ad
er

 a
n

 o
ve

ra
ll

 v
ie

w
 

of
 e

ac
h 

an
d

 e
ve

ry
 o

n
e 

of
 t

ho
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

_ 
_

_
 T

H
E

 A
S

M
S

U
 M

E
D

IA
 _

_
 _ 

m
E

 E
X

P
O

N
E

N
T

 
T

h
e 

E
xp

on
en

t 
Is

 t
h

e 
st

u
d

en
t 

ne
w

sp
ap

er
 o

f 
M

on
ta

na
 

S
ta

te
 U

ni
ve

rs
it

y.
 I

t I
s p

ub
li

sh
ed

 tw
ic

e 
w

ee
kl

y 
du

ri
ng

 th
e 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r 
an

d
 1

5 
di

st
ri

bu
te

d 
fr

ee
 o

f 
ch

ar
ge

. 
T

h
e 

E
xp

on
en

t I
s 

w
ri

tt
en

. e
di

te
d 

an
d

 a
ss

em
bl

ed
 b

y 
st

ud
en

ts
 

an
d

 f
ea

tu
re

s 
ne

w
s.

 s
po

rt
s 

en
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t,
 e

di
to

ri
al

s,
 

cl
as

si
fi

ed
 a

d
s 

an
d

. 
la

st
 b

ut
 n

o
t 

le
as

t.
 T

h
e 

F
ar

 S
id

e 
an

d
 

B
lo

om
 C

ou
nt

y!
 

K
G

L
T

 
K

G
L

 T
 I

s 
th

e 
st

u
d

en
t o

w
n

ed
 a

n
d

 o
p

er
at

ed
 p

ub
li

c 
ra

di
o 

st
at

io
n 

o
f 

th
e 

G
al

la
ti

n 
V

al
le

y 
br

oa
dc

as
ti

ng
 2

4 
hr

s.
 p

er
 

da
y.

 K
G

L
T

sp
ec

la
li

ze
s 

In
 r

oc
k,

 c
la

ss
ic

al
. a

n
d

 ja
zz

 m
us

ic
. 

If
 y

ou
'r

e 
ti

re
d 

o
f "

th
e 

o
th

er
 st

at
io

ns
."

 p
ic

k 
u

p
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
an

d
 t

u
n

e 
y

o
u

r 
ra

di
o 

to
 s

te
re

o
 9

2 
FM

 f
or

 
so

m
e 

o
f 

th
e 

be
st

 a
lt

er
na

ti
ve

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
an

yw
he

re
! 

m
E

 M
O

N
T

A
N

A
N

 
T

h
e 

M
on

ta
na

n 
Is

 t
h

e 
ca

m
p

u
s 

ye
ar

bo
ok

 o
f 

M
on

ta
na

 
S

ta
te

. 
T

h
e 

b
o

o
k

 Is
 a

n
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 w
ay

 o
f 

pr
es

er
vi

ng
 th

e 
ev

en
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

m
an

y
 m

em
or

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e 

pa
st

. 
C

al
l 9

94
-

31
11

 t
o

 o
rd

er
 y

ou
r 

ye
ar

bo
ok

. 

P
U

B
U

C
 R

E
L

A
T

IO
N

S 

T
h

e 
A

S
M

S
U

 P
ub

lic
 R

el
at

io
ns

 C
om

m
it

te
e 

se
rv

es
 a

s 
II

 

br
id

ge
 0

1 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
st

ud
en

t 
m

em
be

rs
 0

1 
A

SM
SU

. 
T

hi
s 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

aD
ow

s 
th

e 
st

ud
en

t v
oi

ce
 t

o
 b

e 
he

ar
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 t

he
 B

oz
em

an
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

st
at

e 
of

 M
on

ta
na

. T
hi

s 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
is

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bu

si­
ne

ss
 S

up
po

rt
 P

ro
gr

am
 5

0
 p

ic
k 

up
 y

o
u

r 
fre

e 
ca

rd
 to

da
y.

 

T
Y

P
E

S
E

T
T

IN
G

 
T

h
e 

A
S

M
S

U
 T

yp
es

el
tl

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
 Is

 a
 s

tu
de

nt
 o

p
er

at
ed

 
or

ga
ni

za
ti

on
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
ll 

th
e 

ty
pe

se
tt

in
g 

se
rv

lc
t!

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
 b

y 
o

u
r 

o
th

er
 m

ed
ia

. 
It 

Is
 a

ls
o 

o
p

en
 f

or
 u

se
 b

y 
st

ud
en

ts
 a

n
d

 fa
cu

lty
. 

S
to

p
 b

y 
th

ei
r o

ff
ic

e.
 lo

ca
te

d 
al

on
g 

w
it

h 
al

l 
th

e 
o

th
er

 m
ed

ia
. 

o
n

 t
h

e 
th

ir
d 

fl
oo

r 
o

f 
th

e 
S

tu
d

en
t 

U
ni

on
 B

U
ild

in
g 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 d

et
ai

ls
. 

A
S

M
S

U
 A

U
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

 
A

S
M

S
U

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
al

l o
f t

h
es

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

al
o

n
g

 w
it

h 
a 

fe
w

 :
 

o
th

er
s 

lik
e 

H
om

ec
om

in
g,

 E
le

ct
io

ns
 a

n
d

 S
u

m
m

er
 Pr

o-I
 

gr
am

m
ln

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ac

tl
ll

lt
y 

fe
es

 t
h

at
 s

tu
d

en
ts

 p
ay

 I 
ev

er
y 

qu
ar

te
r.

 E
ac

h 
st

u
d

en
t c

ar
ry

in
g 

7 
o

r 
m

o
re

 c
re

di
ts

 
pa

ys
 a

 
$2

0.
00

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
fe

e.
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
fe

es
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
to

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

$5
00

,0
00

. a
nn

ua
ll

y.
 T

h
e 

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

 o
f 

fe
es

 I
s 

as
 f

ol
lo

w
s:

 

Y
ou

 a
re

 g
re

at
ly

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

ed
 t

o
 g

et
 I

nv
ol

ve
d 

w
it

h 
an

y
 

o
f 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
li

st
ed

 I
n 

th
is

 p
am

ph
le

t.
 

F
or

 m
o

re
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 p
le

as
e 

st
o

p
 b

y 
th

e 
A

S
M

S
U

 o
ff

ic
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

ne
xt

 t
o

 t
h

e 
A

S
K

-U
S

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
C

en
te

r 
In

 t
h

e 
S

U
B

. 
O

u
r 

h
o

u
rs

 a
re

 8
:0

0 
a.

m
. 

-
5:

00
 p

.m
. 

M
on

da
y 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

F
ri

da
y 

du
ri

ng
 t

h
e 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r.
 



• 
A

S
M

S
U

 C
A

M
P

U
S

 E
N

T
E

R
T

A
IN

M
E

N
T

 • 

A
R

T
S

 &
 E

X
H

IB
IT

S
 

T
he

 A
rt

s 
&

 E
xh

ib
its

 C
om

m
it

te
e 

sh
ow

ca
se

s e
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f 
th

e 
vi

su
al

 a
rt

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
ar

ch
it

ec
tu

ra
l r

en
de

ri
ng

s.
 g

ra
ph

ic
s.

 
;c

ul
pt

ur
e,

 
pa

in
ti

ng
s 

an
d

 
ph

ot
og

ra
ph

s 
of

 
lo

ca
lly

. 
re

gi
on

al
ly

 
an

d 
na

ti
on

al
ly

 
kn

ow
n 

ar
ti

st
s 

as
 

w
el

l 
as

 
sp

on
so

ri
ng

 le
ct

ur
es

 a
n

d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
s o

f v
is

iti
ng

 a
rt

is
ts

. 
T

hi
s 

co
m

m
it

te
e 

ru
ns

 t
he

 E
X

IT
 G

A
L

L
E

R
Y

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 i

n 
th

e 
si

de
 o

f 
th

e 
S

U
B

 o
n 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 f

lo
or

. 

C
O

N
C

E
R

T
S

 
T

he
 

C
on

ce
rt

s 
C

om
m

it
te

e 
br

in
gs

 
po

pu
la

r 
re

gi
on

al
, 

. ,
:1<

11
 a

ct
s 

an
d 

re
co

rd
in

g 
ar

tis
ts

 t
o 

B
oz

em
an

 in
 b

ot
h 

"
"
.J

"
 
Fi

t!
ld

ho
us

e 
sh

ow
s 

an
d

 s
m

al
le

r 
pe

ri
or

m
an

ce
s 

in
 

th
e 

S
U

B
 B

al
lr

oo
m

. 
In

 p
re

vi
ou

s y
ea

rs
. A

SM
SU

 C
on

ce
rt

s 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
ha

s 
br

ou
gh

t 
in

 t
op

 n
am

e 
ac

ts
 l

ik
e:

 
3

8
 

SP
E

C
IA

L
, M

1K
EY

 D
R

E
A

D
 A

N
D

 H
IS

 R
E

G
G

A
E

 B
A

N
D

. 
th

e 
M

O
N

T
A

N
A

 B
A

N
D

, J
az

z 
tr

um
pe

te
r F

R
E

D
D

IE
 H

U
B

­
B

A
R

D
, 

bl
ue

s 
gr

ea
t 

R
O

B
E

R
T

 C
R

A
 Y

. Q
U

E
E

N
 I

D
A

 a
nd

 
he

r 
B

O
N

 T
E

M
PS

 l
Y

D
E

C
O

 B
A

N
D

, 
B

R
Y

A
N

 A
D

A
M

S.
 

F
IL

M
S

 
T

he
 F

ilm
s 

C
om

m
it

te
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 m
ov

ie
s 

an
d 

fil
m

 s
er

ie
s 

to
 t

he
 M

SU
 c

am
pu

s 
at

 a
 v

er
y 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 c

os
t. 

M
os

t o
f 

th
e 

fil
m

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

in
 3

3
9

 L
eo

n 
Jo

hn
so

n 
H

al
l a

n
d

 in
 

1
2

5
 L

in
fi

el
d 

H
al

l. 
In

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
's

 w
e 

ha
ve

 b
ro

ug
ht

 
yo

u 
fil

m
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

'D
as

 B
oo

t:
 'B

la
de

 R
un

ne
r:

 '
G

on
e 

W
ith

 t
he

 W
in

d,
' '

B
ra

zi
l,'

 a
n

d
 'O

ut
 o

f 
A

fr
ic

a.
' 

LE
C

T
IJ

R
E

S
 

T
he

 L
ec

tu
re

s 
C

om
m

it
te

e 
sp

on
so

rs
 s

ev
er

al
 n

at
io

na
lly

 
an

d
 r

eg
io

na
lly

 k
no

w
n 

sp
ea

ke
rs

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 
br

ou
gh

t y
ou

 s
uc

h 
pe

op
le

 a
s 

H
un

te
r S

. T
ho

m
ps

on
, D

r. 
R

ut
h 

W
es

th
ei

m
er

, 
an

d
 J

am
es

 W
at

t. 

U
V

E
L

Y
 A

R
T

S
 

L
iv

el
y 

A
rt

s 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 f

or
 M

SU
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

to
 b

e 
ex

po
se

d 
to

 a
 w

el
l 

ba
la

nc
ed

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l s
er

ie
s o

f t
he

at
er

, m
us

ic
al

 fo
rm

s 
ija

zz
, b

lu
es

. 
cl

as
si

ca
l, 

co
un

tr
y,

 a
n

d
 c

on
te

m
po

ra
ry

).
 

W
e 

br
in

g 
yo

u 
ac

ts
 l

ik
e 

B
A

L
L

E
T

 W
E

ST
, 

N
E

W
 Y

O
R

K
 C

IT
Y

 S
W

IN
G

 
B

A
N

D
, M

O
N

T
A

N
A

 R
E

PE
R

T
O

R
Y

 T
H

E
A

T
R

E
. 

S
ea

so
n 

T
ic

ke
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d.
 

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

T
ec

h 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
es

 li
gh

tin
g 

an
d 

so
un

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

to
 A

SM
SU

 p
ro

gr
am

s,
 u

ni
ve

rs
ity

 f
un

ct
io

ns
 a

n
d

 a
ny

on
e 

el
se

 w
ho

 m
ay

 n
ee

d 
th

ei
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
or

 s
ki

lls
. 

T
ec

h 
Se

rv
ic

es
, i

n 
ad

di
ti

on
 to

 a
ll 

th
e 

ot
he

r C
am

pu
s 

E
nt

er
ta

in
­

m
en

t C
om

m
it

te
es

, i
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

ac
ro

ss
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 A
SK

-U
S 

de
sk

 in
 t

he
 S

U
B

. 

_ 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

 _
 

A
U

T
O

 R
E

P
A

IR
 S

H
O

P
 

T
he

 A
ut

o 
R

ep
ai

r 
S

ho
p,

 lo
ca

te
d 

ac
ro

ss
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 i
nt

ra
­

m
ur

al
 fi

el
ds

 o
n 

S
ou

th
 7

th
, p

ro
V

id
es

 s
tu

de
nt

s e
ve

ry
th

in
g 

th
ey

 m
ay

 n
ee

d 
to

 w
or

k 
on

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

A
ny

th
in

g 
fr

om
 l

ift
s 

an
d 

st
al

ls
 t

o 
to

ol
s 

an
d 

m
ot

or
 o

il 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

m
os

t 
ho

ur
s 

of
 t

he
 d

ay
. 

C
al

l 
9

9
4

-3
3

4
2

 f
or

 
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

B
IK

E
 &

 S
K

I 
R

E
P

A
IR

 S
H

O
P

 
T

he
 B

ik
e 

&
 S

ki
 R

ep
ai

r S
ho

p.
 li

ke
 th

e 
A

ut
o 

R
ep

ai
r S

ho
p,

 
pr

ov
id

es
 s

tu
de

nt
s a

ll 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
ol

s 
an

d 
eq

U
ip

m
en

t 
to

 w
or

k 
o

n
 t

he
ir

 o
w

n 
bi

ke
s 

an
d

 s
ki

s.
 

A
 s

ta
ff

 p
er

so
n 

is
 

al
so

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 o
ff

er
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
as

si
st

an
ce

 o
n 

an
yt

hi
ng

 
fr

om
 w

ax
in

g 
o

r 
pi

ne
 ta

rr
in

g 
sk

is
 t

o 
re

pa
ir

in
g 

sp
ok

es
. 

T
he

 B
ik

e 
&

 S
ki

 R
ep

ai
r S

ho
p 

is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

S
O

B
 B

am
. 

be
hi

nd
 N

or
th

 H
ed

ge
s 

do
rm

. 
C

al
l 

99
4-

36
21

. 

A
S

M
S

U
 D

A
Y

C
A

R
E

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 
T

he
 D

ay
ca

re
 C

en
te

r.
 lo

ca
te

d 
1 

bl
oc

k 
no

rt
h 

of
 t

he
 S

O
B

 
B

am
. 

pr
oV

id
es

 q
ua

lit
y,

 s
af

e.
 a

nd
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ch

ild
 c

ar
e 

fo
r 

st
ud

en
ts

 w
ith

 s
m

al
l c

hi
ld

re
n.

 O
nl

y 
on

e 
pa

re
nt

 m
us

t 
be

 a
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
M

SU
 s

tu
de

nt
 to

 ta
ke

 a
dv

an
ta

ge
 

of
 t

he
 d

ay
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

T
he

 c
en

te
r 

is 
st

af
fe

d 
by

 a
 f

ul
l­

ti
m

e 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

ta
ff

 a
nd

 is
 a

va
il

ab
le

 m
os

t o
f t

he
 y

ea
r.

 
W

e 
ar

e 
ex

ci
te

d 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

ne
w

 b
U

ild
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
ou

r 
D

ay
ca

re
 C

en
te

r.
 C

al
l 9

9
4

-4
3

7
0

 fo
r 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

IN
T

R
A

M
U

R
A

LS
 

B
y 

fa
r 

th
e 

m
os

t 
us

ed
 A

SM
SU

 p
ro

gr
am

 o
n 

ca
m

pu
s,

 
in

tr
am

ur
al

s 
pr

ov
id

es
 f

ri
en

dl
y 

co
m

pe
ti

ti
on

 fo
r 

st
ud

en
ts

 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f 

di
ff

er
en

t s
po

rt
in

g 
ev

en
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
oc

ce
r,

 
ra

cq
ue

tb
al

l, 
vo

lle
yb

al
l. 

ba
sk

et
ba

ll
.a

nd
 s

of
tb

al
l. 

T
hi

s 
pr

og
ra

m
 i

s 
co

-s
po

ns
or

ed
 

by
 A

SM
SU

 w
ith

 
S

tu
de

nt
 

A
ff

ai
rs

 &
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 t
he

 P
E

 C
om

pl
ex

. 
C

al
l 

99
4-

39
11

 f
or

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

D
 S

T
U

D
E

N
T

S
 

LE
G

A
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

A
SM

SU
 e

m
pl

oy
s 

a 
fu

ll-
tim

e 
at

to
rn

ey
 fo

r 
st

ud
en

t u
se

 in
 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n
 l

eg
al

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

n
d

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

in
 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
. 

L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 t

he
 

A
SM

SU
 o

ff
ic

e 
in

 th
e 

S
tu

de
nt

 U
ni

on
 B

ui
ld

in
g.

 C
al

l 9
94

-
2

9
3

3
 f

or
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ils
. 

O
U

T
D

O
O

R
 R

E
C

R
E

A
T

IO
N

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 
T

he
 A

SM
SU

 O
ut

do
or

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
C

en
te

r,
 l

oc
at

ed
 in

 
th

e 
SO

B
 B

am
, 

of
fe

rs
 t

he
 M

SU
 s

tu
de

nt
 a

n 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 

op
po

rt
un

it
y 

to
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
t 

ou
td

oo
rs

. 
B

ot
h 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
an

d
 e

xc
ur

si
on

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

ye
ar

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 O

ut
do

or
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

en
te

r.
 

C
aD

 
99

4-
36

21
 f

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

S
T

U
D

E
N

T
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 
S

tu
de

nt
 S

ec
ur

it
y 

pr
O

vi
de

s 
ad

de
d 

se
cu

ri
ty

 fo
r 

a 
va

ri
et

y 
of

 e
ve

nt
s 

o
n

 c
am

pu
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
at

hl
et

ic
 e

ve
nt

s 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 s
po

ns
or

ed
 b

y 
C

am
pu

s 
E

nt
er

ta
in

m
en

t s
uc

h 
as

 
co

nc
er

ts
 a

nd
 l

ec
tu

re
s.

 

B
O

B
C

A
T

 T
R

A
N

S
IT

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 
T

he
 B

T
S 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 f

re
e 

of
 c

ha
rg

e 
to

 a
ll 

ac
tiv

ity
 f

ee
 p

ay
in

g 
st

ud
en

ts
. 

T
he

 B
T

S
 o

pe
ra

te
s 

th
re

e 
co

m
m

ut
er

 r
ou

te
s 

in
 t

he
 m

or
ni

ng
 a

n
d

 t
he

 e
ve

ni
ng

. 
A

 
sh

ut
tl

e 
bu

s 
op

er
at

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
da

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
ca

m
pu

s 
an

d 
to

w
n.

 

_
_

_
 O

T
H

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 _

_
 _ 

T
he

 fo
llO

W
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 o

ff
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
A

SM
SU

 
of

fi
ce

 i
n 

th
e 

S
tu

de
nt

 U
ni

on
 B

ui
ld

in
g:

 

T
U

T
O

R
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
T

he
 A

SM
SU

 T
ut

or
ia

l C
om

m
it

te
e 

co
or

di
na

te
s 

st
ud

en
ts

 
w

ho
 n

ee
d 

he
lp

 in
 c

la
ss

es
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 s
tu

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 

fu
lly

 q
ua

li
fi

ed
 t

o 
tu

to
r.

 A
SM

SU
 s

pl
its

 t
he

 c
os

t w
ith

 t
he

 
pe

rs
on

 b
ei

ng
 t

ut
or

ed
. 

R
E

N
T

A
L 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
 

A
SM

SU
 l

is
ts

 a
 g

re
at

 n
um

be
r 

01
 h

ou
se

s.
 a

pa
rt

m
en

ts
. 

ro
om

s 
an

d 
m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
 fo

r r
en

t i
n 

th
e 

G
al

la
ti

n 
V

al
le

y.
 

S
to

p 
by

 th
e 

A
SM

SU
 o

ff
ic

e 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

lo
ok

 o
r i

l y
ou

 h
av

e 
a 

re
nt

al
 i

te
m

 t
o

 li
st

. 

N
O

T
A

R
Y

 P
U

B
U

C
 

T
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
is 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fr

ee
 o

f c
ha

rg
e 

to
 a

ll 
ac

tiv
ity

 f
ee

 
pa

yi
ng

 s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

T
Y

P
IN

G
 R

E
F

E
R

R
A

L 
A

SM
SU

 k
ee

ps
 a

 li
st

 o
f 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ty

pi
st

s 
in

 th
e 

B
oz

em
an

 
ar

ea
. 



VISITORS' REGISTER 

STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

DATE: -ct~~ ; ..... ,'l:I",..;..)fi.~~~V=--U..;...~j~-'-/_s:r-/~/....,;.9_R---=--J __ _ 

NAME REPRESENTING BILL 41 Support ~ 

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY 



.. ",""" 

PURCHASE ORDER STATE OF MONTANA 
\GE 1 02/06/89 P.O. 4f .. ":J"/"~Q 

WLL TO. MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY J[ ISSUED IN ACCORDANCE WI"['" I 
Intramur.la & R.cr.a~lQn H gFF6:R T9 SEbla . ' 
Rm 202 Bhroy.r Gym 186327 ]C [ IFB NO.l[' DATE ' I J. 
BDz.",an NT ~9717 ]C INVITATION [ ][ JI - ]t FOR BID [ 906b-F ][12/21/88 ] 

------------------------------------~------------------------------------------
~' ;:NDORI .. FED 10 NO. 131669467 

L.ver Brothers Cpmpany 
Gov.rnm.nt Industrial Div. 
390 Park Ayenue 
NEW YORK NY 10022-~606 

J[ VENDOR NO.1 120047 
Jt REQUISITION NO, USSU-9-984624 
J[ 
J[ IMPORTANT. SEE GENERAL TERMS AND 
J[ CONDITIONS ON REVERSE SIDE 

-----------------------------~------------------------~------------------------
~JTEMJ[CLASS]C 

O.JtITEM It 
ITEM 

DESCRIPTION 
] [ UNIT J 
JeQTY U/HJt PRICE )[ EXTENSION J 

-~-----------------------------------------------------------------------------
Contact. Rlley N. Stone 
Vendor t.l.phone. 800-223-0392, . . 

Ext. 4862 
DAT __ -TAt..:jI~...:... ___ .. '_,"! 

~' 1 :50:5-74 
Bill NO __ ~=-..; ....... ___ "_:~_ 

- 5 oz. size DEODORANT SOAP (Dial or 
comparabl.) 
Brand. Shield ~ 3 oz. (48 per c~_e) 

2000 BARS 1240.00 

TOTAL. 1240.00 

...., 
!.-

"" ;Q ::11 
.., 

. "C: rri c:t.X'::;o ~ 
O:,O~'. 0' N;Z:= 
[T'I-i l. ri'l :K: c:n l ", c::::I 
> .... :;: ~ -:z: - ~ < - c: c:. 
Xz,t;:: ~ f.11 .... <tr'1 =-= " ::a - C -1 CD 

c.a 

'" " , , 'i' !,;:', " '---------------------------------ps 
-,,'"''."''''' ,.,., "'~::';':~;f.!h ... i nlil Di vi a i en (406) 444-2~75 

"::,",)" >~J DATEI ,t),2-o6-f9 
~~ ~~-------------------------------t----::.:~-iASE ORDER NUMBER MUST APPEAR ON YOU 

.::'; > > » > > > > > > > > > > > > P.O. tt 4~971 6 

',------------------------------------~ .. 

c~: '. 
" 

", 

"\ 
; 



VISITORS' REGISTER 

/' STATE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

DATE: wktd) /-1- /ff5 

NAME REPRESENTING BILL # Support cnx:se 

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH SECRETARY 

'lfl 

II 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
~ 
II 




